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REASON FOR PERFORMING AN EXAMINATION:

Johnny Hollman was a 62-year-old, black male (with a documented medical history of
hypertension, chronic obstructive pulmonary disease, and diabetes mellitus) who became involved
in a physical confrontation with law enforcement following a minor motor vehicle crash. Body
cam video and discussion with GBI Special Agent Keshia Morris confirmed that the officer used
a conducted energy device on the decedent. He became unresponsive at the scene and was
transported to Grady Memorial Hospital, where he was pronounced dead in the emergency room
on 8/11/2023 at 12:57 a.m.

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS:
L Use of conducted energy device on the decedent.
IL. Hypertensive cardiovascular discase.
A. Cardiomegaly (520 grams; expected heart weight based on height = 327 +/- 40
grams) with concentric left ventricular hypertrophy.
[II.  Atherosclerotic cardiovascular disease.
A. Marked atherosclerosis of the left main coronary artery.
B. Marked two-vessel coronary atherosclerosis.
C. Moderate aortic atherosclerosis.
IV.  Chronic obstructive pulmonary disease.
A. Chronic bronchitis.
V. Diabetes mellitus.
VI.  Obesity (Body Mass Index = 37.1 kg/m*).
VII. Hepatomegaly (2160 grams).
A. Chronic passive hepatic congestion.
VIII. Toxicology results per Axis Laboratories.
A. Peripheral blood delta-9 THC level = 20.6 ng/mL.
B. Peripheral blood delta-9 Carboxy THC level = 55.6 ng/mL.
C. Peripheral blood 11-hydroxy Delta-9 THC level = 3.0 ng/mL.
D. Peripheral blood cyclobenzaprine level = 23.0 ng/mL.
E. Peripheral blood naproxen level = 10.1 mcg/mL.
IX.  Laboratory results per Grady Memorial Hospital.
A. Hemoglobin phenotype = AA.
B. Vitreous fluid analysis is within postmortem values.
C. Btlood hemoglobin Ajc level = 7.8%.
X. Minor blunt force head trauma.
A. Facial abrasions.
B. Scalp/subgaleal and bilateral temporalis musculature hemorrhages.
XI.  Minor blunt force trauma to the torso and extremities.

A. Abrasions and contusions.
B. Superficial wound on volar right hand.
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C. Cutdowns of the posterior torso and extremities reveal less than 10 foci of
subcutaneous and superficial musculature hemorrhages (measuring up to 5.8 cm
each).

XII.  Minor, miscellaneous injury.

A. Lingual hemorrhage.

XIII. Injuries consistent with resuscitative efforts.

A. Soft tissue hemorrhages overlie the left superior horn of the thyroid cartilage and
left greater horn of the hyoid bone (both of which are intact) and the thyroid gland.

B. Fractures of right anterior ribs #2-6, right anterolateral ribs #1-3, left anterior ribs
#2-5, and left anterolateral ribs #2-4 with intercostal musculature hemorrhages.

CAUSE OF DEATH:

Cardiac dysrhythmia due to use of conducted energy device in association with hypertensive and
atherosclerotic cardiovascular disease.

OTHER SIGNIFICANT CONDITIONS:

Chronic obstructive pulmonary disease; Diabetes mellitus; Obesity.
MANNER OF DEATH:

Homicide.

OPINION:

It is my opinion that Johnny Hollman died due to cardiac dysrhythmia (abnormal heart rhythm)
due to use of a conducted energy device in association with hypertensive and atherosclerotic
cardiovascular disease. Review of body cam video and discussion with GBI Special Agent Keshia
Morris confirm that a conducted energy device is used as a stun gun during physical confrontation
with law enforcement. Based on my review and interpretation of the video, Mr. Hollman is
unresponsive from the time that the energy device is deployed. At no time is neck compression
used, and based on the angle of the video, compression of the torso is not identified. Chronic
obstructive pulmonary disease, diabetes mellitus, and obesity are contributory factors in this death.

The manner of death is classified as homicide.
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DATE, TIME, AND PLACE OF EXAMINATION:

Under the provisions of the Georgia Death Investigation Act, an autopsy is performed in the
morgue of the Fulton County Medical Examiner’s Center on August 12, 2023.

PRESENTATION, CLOTHING, AND PERSONAL EFFECTS:

The body is received supine in a white plastic disaster bag secured with a red plastic seal numbered
5917288. Attached to the plastic seal is a Fulton County Medical Examiner’s Center identification
tag with the designation “Johnny Hollman”. Body identification also includes an identification
tag (identifying the decedent by the stat pack name “Meyersdale 6, Emergency U”) with attached
string encircling the right great toe.

The body is unclad. Personal effects include an appropriately worn, yellow-metal necklace with
a yellow-metal “J” pendant with clear stones. Clothing and additional personal effects are not
received with the body. A pair of gray-metal handcuffs (with a cuff encircling the left wrist) is
present. These handcuffs are removed at autopsy in accordance with office policy.

DIAGNOSTIC AND THERAPEUTIC DEVICES AND MARKINGS:

Supraglottic airway in oral cavity with loose strap.

Appropriately positioned cervical collar.

Defibrillator pad on the right chest and overlying the left anterolateral costal margin.
Automated external defibrillator pad on the central lower chest.

Multiple electrocardiogram pads on the anterior torso.

Peripheral intravascular line with overlying adhesive on the dorsolateral right wrist.
Contusion with associated swelling and puncture site (consistent with prior intravascular
line site/attempt) on the left antecubital fossa.

8. Intracsseous line (with overlying taped gauze) on the proximal aspect of the left
anteromedial lower leg.

O A

POSTMORTEM X-RAYS:

The postmortem x-ray is reviewed.

POSTMORTEM CHANGES:

The refrigerated body is cool to the touch. Rigor mortis is generalized and fully developed. Violet
postmortem lividity is posteriorly distributed except in regions of pressure. The comeas are
clouded. The body is well preserved.
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FEATURES OF IDENTIFICATION:

The unembalmed body is that of a black male appearing consistent with the reported age of 62
years, measuring 68 inches in length and weighing 244 pounds. The decedent is well developed
and obese, with a body mass index = 37.1 kg/m?. The curly, white with interspersed gray-black
head hair is in multiple braids measuring 3 inches in length. Facial hair consists of a vertical strip
of curly, white-gray-black hair on the central chin (measuring 0.5 inch in length). The irides are
brown. The natural teeth are in fair repair; multiple teeth are remotely absent.

Identifying marks and scars are not apparent. Nondescript scars overlie the right knee and distal
lower extremities.

EVIDENCE OF ACUTE INJURY:
Minor Blunt Force Head Trauma:

A 0.5 x 0.3 inch, faint pink abrasion and few indistinct, pink abrasions (measuring up to 0.2 inch
each) overlie the superomedial right orbital rim. An irregular, 1.1 x 0.5 inch, red abrasion and
multiple satellite abrasions (measuring less than 0.1 inch each) span the nasal dorsum
(predominantly on the right).

Internal examination reveals right frontotemporal scalp/subgaleal hemorrhages and scattered left
temporal scalp/subgaleal and parieto-occipital scalp hemorrhages (measuring up to 4 x 4 cm each).
Bilateral temporalis musculature hemorrhages are present. The neurocranium is intact, and the
brain is atraumatic.

Minor Blunt Force Trauma to the Torso and Extremities:

A 7 x 3 inch, discontinuous aggregate of confluent and petechial, dark red contusions spans the
superolateral left back. A vertically linear, 2.5 x 0.3 inch confluence of similar contusions is on
the upper half of the lateral left back. A vertical and curvilinear, 4.8 x 0.3 inch, discontinuous
aggregate of petechial and confluent, dark red contusions is on the posterolateral left torso. A 0.9
x 0.6 inch aggregate of similar, faint contusions is on the superomedial right back. An obliquely
linear, 0.4 inch, dark abrasion is on the posterior right flank. An approximately 1 x 1 inch
aggregate of faint red discoloration vs. contusions is on the superolateral right shoulder. Multiple,
irregular red abrasions (measuring up to 0.9 x 0.8 inch each) overlie the right elbow. Indistinct,
faint pink contusions span the dorsomedial right forearm. An essentially coronal, 0.7 x 0.2 inch,
superficial dark wound is on the volar surface of the lateral right hand.

Multiple irregular, red abrasions (measuring up to 1.3 x 0.5 inch each) overlie and are distal and
lateral to the knees, A 1.2 x 0.5 inch, reddish-brown abrasion is on the medial left knee.

Cutdowns of the back, buttocks, upper extremities, and posterior lower extremities reveal:
1. Scattered subcutaneous hemorrhages (up to 3.8 x 0.8 cm each) of the superolateral right back.
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2. A 5.8x 3.3 cm focus of subcutaneous/superficial musculature hemorrhage of the superolateral
left back.

3. Scattered subcutaneous hemorrhages (up to 1.3 cm each) of the posterolateral left torso and

lateral left hip.

Subcutaneous hemorrhages (up to 3.8 x 2.5 cm each) overlying and distal to the right elbow.

Subcutaneous hemorrhage (2 x 2 cm) of the lateral right wrist.

6. A 2.5 x 2.5 cm, discontinuous aggregate of subcutaneous hemorrhages of the superior left
shoulder.

7. Three to four subcutaneous hemorrhages (up to 2.5 x 2.5 cm each) of the distal aspect of the

dorsal, left upper arm and lateral left elbow.

A 3.8 x 2 cm, subcutaneous hemorrhage of the medial left elbow.

9. A 3.8 x 3.8 cm, discontinuous aggregate of subcutancous hemorrhages of the lateral right
knee.

w R

20

Minor, Miscellaneous Injury:

Bivalving the tongue reveals a 0.4 x 0.2 cm hemorrhage of the distal, right lingual musculature.
Injuries Consistent with Resuscitative Efforts:

Internal examination reveals soft tissue hemorrhages overlie the left superior horn of the thyroid
cartilage and left greater horn of the hyoid bone (both of which are intact), as well as the left lobe
of the thyroid gland. Right anterior ribs #2-6, right anterolateral ribs #1-3, left anterior ribs #2-5,

and left anterolateral ribs #2-4 are fractured with associated intercostal musculature hemorrhages.

EXTERNAL EXAMINATION:

The head is normally formed. The soft tissues of the face and neck are mildly plethoric. The facial
bones and mandible are free of palpable fractures. Ocular petechiae of the lower palpebral
conjunctivae are present, and facial petechiae are absent. The sclerae are anicteric. The
conjunctival blood vessels are congested. The nose is normally formed. The nasal vestibules are
clear. The lips, teeth, tongue, gums, and buccal mucosa are unremarkable. The external meati,
pinnae, and mastoid regions are unexceptional.

The trachea is in the midline of the neck. The neck is neither crepitant nor excessively mobile. No
palpable masses are present.

The chest and back are symmetrical and well developed. The protuberant abdomen is free of
palpable organomegaly. An umbilical hernia is present. The spine is straight.

The extremities are symmetrical and well developed. The appendicular skeleton is stable to
manipulation. The hands and feet are normally formed. All the digits are present. The fingernails
have irregular edges, extend less than 0.2 inch beyond the digit tips, and display focal underlying
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debris. The toenails have irregular edges, do not extend beyond the digit tips, and are variably
thickened and discolored.

The penile foreskin is long, and the testes are palpable within the scrotum. The external genitalia,
perineum, and anorectal areas are normally formed and atraumatic. The inguinal regions and
buttocks are unremarkable.

There is no cervical, axillary, or inguinal lymphadenopathy.

INTERNAL EXAMINATION:

Head:

The scalp is reflected using the standard intermastoidal incision. The calvarium is intact. The dura
is intact and free of discoloration and thickening. The base of the skull is examined after stripping
the dura and is intact. The leptomeninges are thin and transparent. There is no epidural, subdural,
or subarachnoid hemorrhage. The brain weighs 1040 grams. The gyri and sulci are of normal
distribution and development. There are no lesions of the cortical gray ribbon, white matter, or
deep gray matter structures indicative of natural disease processes. Neither brain swelling nor
herniation is noted. The normally distributed blood vessels of the circle of Willis are free of
atherosclerosis and aneurysms. The substantia nigra is normally pigmented. The cerebellum,
brainstem, upper cervical spinal cord, and ventricular system are normally formed. The
cercbrospinal fluid is clear.

Neck:

The skin of the neck is dissected to the angle of the mandible. No airway mucosal edema is present.
The hyoid bone and laryngeal cartilages are intact. The epiglottis is neither inflamed nor
edematous. No foreign objects are in the airway. The carotid vessels are pliable and patent. The
anterior cervical spine and atlanto-occipital joint are stable to manipulation.

Chest and Abdomen:

The skin of the chest and abdomen is reflected using the usual Y-shaped incision. The sternum and
chest plate are removed to reveal no abnormal fluid collections in the body cavities. No unusual
odors or color changes are noted. Examination of the organs in situ reveals normal organ
morphology and relationships. The intact diaphragm is normally formed. The organs are removed
using the Virchow technique.

Cardiovascular System:
The heart weighs 520 grams (expected heart weight based on height = 327 +/- 40 grams) and

exhibits normal four-chambered anatomy. The hypertrophied right and left ventricular walls are
0.5 cm and 2.0 cm in thickness, respectively. The muscular interventricular septum is 2.0 cm
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thick. The coronary arteries arise from their usual locations and ramify across their respective
ventricles. The left main coronary artery is 90% occluded by eccentric yellow plaque. The mid
aspect of the left anterior descending coronary artery and proximal aspect of the right coronary
artery are each 75% occluded by eccentric yellow plaque. The epicardium, valve leaflets, chordae
tendineae, and endocardium are normally formed. The pulmonic valve measures 9.0 cm in
circumference at the annulus, and the tricuspid valve measures 12.0 cm in circumference at the
annulus. The aortic valve measures 7.5 cm in circumference at the annulus, and the mitral valve
measures 10.6 cm in circumference at the annulus. The red-brown myocardium is free of discrete
lesions. The aorta and its normally distributed major branches exhibit a moderate degree of
atherosclerosis.

Respiratory System:

The trachea, hilar structures, and major vessels are normally formed. The right and left lungs weigh
920 grams and 840 grams, respectively. The pleural surfaces are smooth. There is expression of
blood and fluid from the congested and edematous parenchyma upon compression. Neither lung
exhibits consolidation, thrombosis, embolism, infarction, or neoplasia.

Gastrointestinal System:

The esophagus is lined by unremarkable, tan-gray mucosa. The gastroesophageal junction is
unremarkable. The gastric mucosa is normally rugated, and the stomach contains approximately
400 grams of thick, tan food matter. The small bowel, colon, and rectum are normally formed.
The appendix is in the right lower abdominal quadrant.

Hepatobiliary System:

The liver weighs 2160 grams. The intact capsule is of normal thickness. The homogenous, red-
brown parenchyma is free of mass lesions. The distended gallbladder contains approximately 40
milliliters of viscous, green-brown bile. The mucosa is unremarkable. No gallstones are present.
The pancreas is of normal size, has the usual lobular architecture, and is free of fibrosis,
hemorrhage, and fat necrosis.

Urogenital System:

The right and left kidneys weigh 140 grams and 120 grams, respectively. The capsules strip with
ease to reveal underlying, smooth, firm, red-brown cortical surfaces. The cut surfaces, including
the pyramids, pelves, calyces, and vessels, are unremarkable. The ureters are of normal caliber.
There are no lesions of the mucosa, wall, or serosa of the urinary bladder, which contains
approximately 60 milliliters of clear yellow urine.

The homogenous, tan-white parenchyma of the enlarged prostate gland displays nodularity. The
testes are symmetrical. The light brown parenchyma is unremarkable.
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Reticuloendothelial System:

The spleen weighs 180 grams. The intact capsule is of normal thickness. The cut surface is dark
red. The red pulp and white pulp are normally distributed. No focal lesions are present. Regional
lymph nodes are unremarkable.

Musculoskeletal System:

The symmetrical skeletal muscles are normally formed.

Endocrine System:

The symmetrical thyroid gland is of normal size. The dark brown parenchyma is free of nodules,
hemorrhages, and cysts. The adrenal glands are of normal size and free of hemorrhage and

nodularity.

MICROSCOPIC DESCRIPTION:

Cassette Summary:

Left anterior descending coronary artery, left cardiac ventricle, left lung.
Right coronary artery, right cardiac ventricle, right lung.

Spleen, pancreas, liver.

Left lung, left adrenal gland, left kidney.

Cerebrum, cerebellum, right adrenal gland, right kidney.

Thyroid gland, prostate gland.

mmyuaw»

Cardiovascular System: The left cardiac ventricle shows plexiform interstitial and perivascular
fibrosis, predominantly involving the inner one half of the ventricular wall. The left anterior
descending coronary arterial section confirms atherosclerotic plaque formation. The right coronary
arterial section is fragmented.

Respiratory System: The lungs reveal acute pulmonary congestion and edema. Hypertrophy of
the bronchial mucous glands is present, consistent with chronic bronchitis. Bone marrow emboli
within the pulmonary vasculature are noted, consistent with resuscitative efforts.

Hepatobiliary System: The liver contains sinusoidal congestion.

Urogenital System: The left renal section displays a subcapsular, wedge-shaped focus of
glomerulosclerosis, tubulointerstitial lymphocytic infiltrates and fibrosis, consistent with chronic
pyelonephritis. The prostate gland shows nodular glandular and stromal hypertrophy, consistent

with benign prostatic hypertrophy.

The remaining histologically unremarkable tissue sections confirm the gross impression.
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OTHER PROCEDURES:

1.

Peripheral blood and urine are submitted to Axis Laboratories for toxicologic analysis.

2. Vitreous fluid is submitted to Grady Memorial Hospital for electrolyte analysis and beta-

OO OUSCARSRRLY

hydroxybutyrate quantitation. Blood is submitted for hemoglobin Aic evaluation and
hemoglobin electrophoresis.

Two air-dried blood spot cards are retained in this facility.

Documentary and identification photographs are obtained.

Representative tissue sections are processed to slides in 6 cassettes.

Serum and archival tissue samples are retained in this facility.

The examined organs are returned to the body cavity.

The personal effect is released with the body.

Pulled head hair is retained in this facility for the investigating agency.

MSS:lsr

Dictated: 08/12/2023
Transcribed: 08/14/2023
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Chief Medical Examiner



City of Atlanta Internal Correspondence

Atlanta Police Department Office of Professional Standards

MEMORANDUM

File # 23-1-0417-1CD

FROM: Investigator Darrin Smith W

DATE: September 8, 2023

RE: Additional Statements for Internal Investigation

On August 31, 2023, Investigator A. Nixon and Lieutenant J. Collins from the Office of
Professional Standards met with witness Dontrell Washington at his attorney’s office located
at 50 Hurt Plaza, Atlanta, GA. A statement was provided by Dontrell Washington about the
events he witnessed on August 10, 2023.

The statement was recorded, transcribed, and placed in the existing investigative file.
On September 7, 2023, Officer Kiran Kimbrough provided an additional statement to the
Office of Professional Standards. The statement was conducted over the phone, with his

attorney Jennifer Sands present.

The statement was recorded, transcribed, and placed in the existing investigative file.

cc. File
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Evidence Title: Officer Kiran Kimbrough Statement 9-7-2023.MP3
This transcript has been verified by Smith, Darrin (4206)

This transcript starts at Sep 8, 2023 8:08 AM -04:00 and is 8m 17s in length

[08:08 AM / 00:01]

Investigator Darrin Smith_OPS Ali right, today is September 7th, 2023. It's 3:36 PM I'm Investigator
Darrin Smith with the Atlanta Police Department's Office of Professional Standards. I'm here on the
phane today with Officer Kiran Kimbrough. Could you state and spell your first and last name for the
record, please?

[08:08 AM / 00:20]
Officer Kiran Kimbrough Yes, I'm, uh, Officer Kiran Kimbrough. First name spelling is Kir a n, last
nameisKimbrougH.

[08:08 AM / 00:29]
Investigator Darrin Smith_OPS Thank you. And also present is your attorney, Jennifer Sands. Is
that correct?

[08:09 AM / 00:34]
Officer Kiran Kimbrough Yes.

[08:09 AM / 00:35]
Investigator Darrin Smith_OPS Uh, Ms. Sands, could you state and spell your first and last name for
the record, please. And how you represent Mr. Kimbrough?

[08:09 AM / 00:41]
Jennifer Sands_Attorney Yes, sir. Uh, Attorney Jennifer Sands, Jennifer. SandsisSandS. |
represent him as legal counsel from LaRusso Law Firm.

[08:09 AM / 00:51)

Investigator Darrin Smith_OPS Thank you. Um, Officer Kimbrough, on August 15th, 2023, you
provided a statement to the Office of Professional Standards, uh, in file number 23-1- 0 4 1 7-ICD. Um,
do you recall providing a statement down here for that day?

[08:09 AM / 01:11)
Officer Kiran Kimbrough Yes.

[08:09 AM / 01:11)

Investigator Darrin Smith_OPS Okay. And the purpose for this follow up, um, questions, uh, was for
some clarification, uh, in this internal investigation based on some of the previous responses from that
August 15th statement. And just for the record, | just want to know, have you had a chance to review
your transcript from that August 15th statement?

[08:10 AM / 01:31]
Officer Kiran Kimbrough Yes, | have,

[08:10 AM / 01:32]

Investigator Darrin Smith_OPS Okay. And | just, just for the record, | just also want to be, make you
aware of, uh, the awareness statement that you had signed on the August 15th statement is still
pertinent to these questions today. Do you understand that?

[08:10 AM / 01:45]
Officer Kiran Kimbrough Yes.

(08:10 AM / 01:486)
Investigator Darrin Smith_OP$ And | just also wanna reiterate, um, that these administrative
statements made by employees and the evidence gained by reasons of such statements may not be



used against the employee in criminal proceedings involving the employee except the case of perjury.
Do you understand that?

[08:10 AM / 02:02]
Officer Kiran Kimbrough Yes.

[08:10 AM / 02:03]

Investigator Darrin Smith_OPS And | just also wanted to note that this, this is a, a, a compelled
statement as well for these three questions that we need to ask you. And do you understand all of
that, sir?

[08:10 AM / 02:14]
Officer Kiran Kimbrough Yes. Okay.

[08:10 AM / 02:15]
Jennifer Sands_Attorney You understand this is compelled, right?

[08:10 AM / 02:17]
Officer Kiran Kimbrough Yes.

[08:10 AM / 02:17]
Jennifer Sands_Attorney Okay.

[08:10 AM / 02:18]

Investigator Darrin Smith_OPS Okay. Alright, thank you. Um, the first question | need to, we wanted
to ask for clarification. Uh, in regards to the incident that occurred on August 10th, uh, 2023, um, with
Mr. Johnny Hollman in the accident that you responded to. Um, can you please explain the need to,
um, physically detain him at that time?

[08:11 AM / 02:44)

Officer Kiran Kimbrough Yes. Um, my decision was based on the totality of circumstances. Uh, at
the time | decided to handcuff him, he had pulled out his cell phone and was texting someone or
calling somebody, which is, umn, it's really, really obstruction within my presence. Um, I'm not sure
what he, who he was texting or calling or what his intentions were. Also that paired with the fact that
this is now the second time that he has gotten irate with me and, um, acting belligerent on scene. |
believe he might've been calling or texting someone to get them to come to the location, which is
creating a dangerous situation for me because like 1 said, | don't know what that person might be
coming to do.

[08:11 AM / 03:28]

Investigator Darrin Smith_OPS Okay. So that was your decision to, uh, detain him at that time,
correct?

[08:12 AM / 03:34)
Officer Kiran Kimbrough Correct.

[08:12 AM / 03:37]
Investigator Darrin Smith_OPS And did you ever explain to Mr. Holloman that you were simply
going to detain him and that he was not under arrest?

[08:12 AM / 03:44]

Officer Kiran Kimbrough No, | don't believe that |, uh, explained that to him at the time. Um, and it's
not typically my common practice to teil someone that you're detained and then place them into
handcuffs as usually that's gonna become the most, that's gonna probably be the lead up to a bad
encounter with somebody if you let them know what you're gonna do beforehand. Um, detaining him
was for my safety for the obstruction, and | had every intent on contacting a supervisor to advise him
about, you know, the failure to sign the citation. Once again, he was obstructing the investigation,
creating an unsafe situation for me by texting or calling someone. And | didn't feel that it was a safe
situation for me to allow him to continue to do that. Um, like [ said, | had every intention on, you know,
letting him know that this is just a detention for a brief period of time until my supervisor can get there.
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But as soon as | did try to place him into handcuffs, he pulled away from me and started fighting when
| took his wrist. Sa | didn't get a chance to explain that to him.

[08:13 AM / 04:54)
Investigator Darrin Smith_OPS Okay. And why didn't you step away from Mr. Hollman and request
a supervisor once he had asked for one?

[08:13 AM / 05:08]

Officer Kiran Kimbrough To my knowledge, um, | don't believe our policy requires, we stop our
investigation immediately when someone asks for a supervisor. And | did plan on getting the
supervisor to the scene to come speak with him as soon as he signed the ticket. And | told him this
several times, but then he pulled out his phone and started texting or calling someone. And at that
point, it, it, the scene was starting to slip away from my hands. It was becoming unsafe, um, because
of the obstruction that was being committed within my presence. Um, 1 think it is clear he was calling
someone to come to the scene because his family did show up there soon after.

[08:14 AM / 05:47]

Investigator Darrin Smith_OPS Okay. Uh, just to clarify this, so, so as it relates to this last question,
s0 you're saying you felt the scene was unsafe and it was, um, needed to detain, arrest whatev
whatever choice, uh, you had made at that time, uh, before requesting a supervisor based on the
circumstances?

[08:14 AM / 06:08]

Officer Kiran Kimbrough Yeah, so at the time | didn't, | didn't necessarily believe | had the intent to
arrest him, but | was very, um, intending on placing him into handcuffs to protect myself. Um, once
again, | would've got him a supervisor to the scene, you know, once the scene was safe.

[08:14 AM / 06:27)
Investigator Darrin Smith_OPS Okay. So you felt it was better to control the scene and then request
a supervisor? Is that what you're saying?

[08:15 AM / 06:33])

Officer Kiran Kimbrough Correct. Um, you know, an arrest means you're going to jail and at that
time, um, you know, you can see that | was actually trying to locate a carjacked vehicle at the same
time that we had a BOLO for. So | didn't necessarily want arrest him, | just wanted to do my
investigation, um, to the, the fullest and then, you know, proceed on about my normal day.

[08:15 AM / 07:01]

Investigator Darrin Smith_OPS Okay. Um, | do not have any further questions for you at this time.
Officer Kimbrough. Um, Ms. Sands, is there anything else that you think, uh, need to be clarified or
questions that you have of me?

[08:15 AM / 07:19]

Officer Kiran Kimbrough | think the only question | wanna clarify, | just wanna make sure |
understand Officer Kimbrough, so you're saying when you say you didn't know, you didn't, you're
referring to arrest as like knowing that he's going to go to jail, you didn't know that at the time you
were just detaining him for your safety and then gonna get a supervisor. Is that right?

[08:16 AM / 07:37]
Officer Kiran Kimbrough Correct.

[08:16 AM / 07:38)
Jennifer Sands_Attorney Okay. That, that's it. | just wanted to clarify that. Thank you.

[08:16 AM / 07:41])
Investigator Darrin Smith_OPS Okay, thank you. Um, Officer Kimbrough, is there anything else
you'd like to add to your statement today?

[08:16 AM / 07:46]
Officer Kiran Kimbrough Um, no sir.
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[08:16 AM / 07:47]
Investigator Darrin Smith_OPS Have you been truthful in your statement?

[08:16 AM / 07:49]
Officer Kiran Kimbrough Yes, Sir.

[08:16 AM / 07:50]
Investigator Darrin Smith_OPS You are aware this is an open and ongoing investigation and you're
not to discuss this case with anyone other than your attorney union representative or peer rep?

[08:16 AM / 07:58]
Officer Kiran Kimbrough Yes, sir.

[08:16 AM / 07:59]

Investigator Darrin Smith_OPS Be advised this should become necessary in this investigation, you
may be directed to submit to computer voice Stress analyzer exam per AP D S O P 31 20. Do you
acknowledge this as official notification?

[08:16 AM / 08:10]
Officer Kiran Kimbrough Yes,

[08:16 AM / 08:10)
Investigater Darrin Smith_OPS It's approximately 3:44 PM We will go ahead and conclude this, um,
phone interview.
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[08:39 AM / 00:00]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS My name is Investigator Art Nixon with the Atlanta Police Department
Internal Affairs Unit. Today is August the 31st, 2023. With me, | have Lieutenant Collins.

[08:39 AM / 00:11]
Lieutenant Justina Collins_OPS Lieutenant Justina Collins, JustinaCollin 8.

[08:39 AM / 00:16]
Investigator A, Nixon_OPS Thank You. We have, we are both representing the Atlanta Police
Department. Sir, can you please state say your name.

(08:39 AM / 00:22)
Dontrell Washington Hello, my name is Dontrell Washington.

[08:39 AM / 00:25]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Thank you.

[08:39 AM / 00:26]
Attorney LaShonda Council Rogers I'm Attorney LaShonda Council Rogers and | represent
Dontrell Washington

[08:39 AM/ 00:32]
Attorney Wayne Washington Attorney Wayne Washington, representing Dontrell Washington.

[08:39 AM / 00:39]
Attorney Jamila Plato Attorney Jamila Plato on behalf of Mr. Washington as well.

[08:40 AM / 00:43)

Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Thank you. This is something | read to everyone, not just for this
particular incident. Mm-hmm Of course. My name is, uh, investigator Art Nixon, uh, with the Atlanta
Police Department. By making this statement, you are providing information in an investigation being
conducted by the Atlanta Police Department. Please be advised that your statement and or your
testimony may be needed at a future time for use in a civil hearing or court of law, You understand
that that's almost kind of like what y'all talked about previously, um, as far as who would've access to
the, uh, to the file.

[08:40 AM / 01:21]
Dontrell Washington Okay? Okay.

[08:40 AM / 01:22}
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Alright. Were you involved in an accident on August 10th, 2023 at
approximately 9:45 PM at the intersection of Joseph E Lowry Boulevard and Cunningham Place?

[08:40 AM / 01:36]
Dontrell Washington Yes.

[08:40 AM / 01:36]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Can you please, uh, explain what happened?

[08:40 AM / 01:39]
Dontrell Washington So, um, let's say if you're just picturing north, south, east, west, right?

[08:41 AM / 01:44]



Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Mm-hmm. <affirmative>,

[08:41 AM/ 01:44]
Dontrell Washington right? If I'm heading northbound, | got to a red light

[08:41 AM / 01:47]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS mm-hmm,. <affirmative>,

{08:41 AM / 01:48]
Dontre!l Washington so | am turning right. So let's say hypothetically that would be east, right?

[08:41 AM / 01:54]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Mm-hmm. <affirmative>,

[08:41 AM / 01:54]
Dontrell Washington so there's a car traveling west. So if I'm turning east, they're already traveling,
you know, westbound,

[08:41 AM / 02:01]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS right.

[08:41 AM / 02:01]
Dontrelf Washington Essentialty. So they, um, were trying to like turn to go south. If I'm headed
north, they're trying to make a turn as if they would be headed south

[08:41 AM / 02:11)
Investigator A. Nixon_QPS right

[08:41 AM / 02:11]
Dontrell Washington in the lane that I'm driving,

[08:41 AM /02:12]
Investigator A, Nixon_OPS Mm-hmm. <affirmative>,

[08:41 AM / 02:13]
Dontrell Washington like if I'm driving north, they're gonna be headed south.

[08:41 AM / 02:15]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Right.

[08:41 AM / 02:15]
Dontrell Washington And it was basicaily just the two lane road, so it wasn't like four lane road or
anything.

[08:41 AM / 02:20]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Mm-hmm. <affirmative>

[08:41 AM / 02:20]

Dontrell Washington just two lane road. So essentially instead of getting to that, uh, getting all the
way to the light and making a left, um, the gentleman just made a ieft. Like he just made a sharp,
sharp left.

[08:41 AM / 02:32)
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Mm-hmm. <affirmative>

(08:41 AM / 02:33)
Dontre!l Washington and basically ran into my vehicle.

[(08:41 AM / 02:35]
Investigator A, Nixon_OPS Okay. So what you're describing is kind of like he sliced the lane, kind of
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[08:41 AM / 02:39])
Dontrell Washington Yeah

[08:41 AM [ 02:39]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS cut the lane.

[08:41 AM / 02:40]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Okay.

[08:41 AM / 02:40]
Dontrell Washington Basically if somebody, like, let's say somebody's trying to drive straight And
there's a green light in front of him and they're trying to make a left.

[08:42 AM / 02:46]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Yeah.

[08:42 AM / 02:47]
Dontrell Washington Instead of going to the light and making a left, they basically made the left
early.

[08:42 AM / 02:50]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Right.

[08:42 AM / 02:51]
Dontrell Washington And didn't see the car that was in the other lane, you know?

[08:42 AM / 02:54)
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Yeah.

[08:42 AM / 02:55]
Dontrell Washington Because normally if they make a left early, they do cut into that other lane.

[08:42 AM / 02:58)
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Gotcha. Do you recall how many times you dialed 9, 91 17

[08:42 AM / 03:06]
Dontrell Washington | believe three. And the main reason is the length of time that it took to get
there. The officers took about an hour and a half closes to it felt, felt like two hours.

[08:42 AM / 03:15]
investigator A. Nixon_OPS Right.

[08:42 AM / 03:16]
Dontrell Washington So it was mainly just 'cause, you know, we were impeding traffic and | know for
a fact that we couldn't stay like that.

[08:42 AM / 03:22]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Mm-hmm. <affirmative>

[08:42 AM [ 03:23]
Dontrell Washington so continuously called to make sure someone was gonna arrive to the scene.

[08:42 AM / 03:26]
Investigator A. Nixon_OP$ Okay. This next question, I'm not,

[08:42 AM / 03:29]
Unknown Response yeah.

[08:42 AM /03:29]
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Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Okay. Could you, could you explain your interaction with the police
officer that arrived on the location? The officer that handled the, uh, the accident?

[08:42 AM / 03:39)
Dontrell Washington Okay. Um, when the officer got to the scene, um, me and Mr. Holiman were,
uh, trying to explain what happened

[08:43 AM / 03:46]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS mm-hmm. <affirmative>,

[08:43 AM / 03:47]
Dontrell Washington so the first thing he said was, oh, | saw, you know, the video of what
happened. So | was like, okay. Um, and he just got out of the car, observed the accident

[08:43 AM / 03:58]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS mm-hmm. <affirmative>

[08:43 AM / 03:59]

Dontrell Washington and um, went into the car, wrote a police report. So it was very brief in terms of,
| didn't really even have that much of an interaction with him, but, uh, he wrote the police report. Um,
once he got out of the car, he handed me the police, you know, my version of the police report or my,
the case number and stuff

[08:43 AM / 04:16]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS mm-hmm. <affirmative>

[08:43 AM / 04:17]
Dontrell Washington and, um, that was just pretty much our interaction.

[08:43 AM / 04:20]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Okay. Did you witness any interaction between the police officer and the
other involved party that was in the accident?

[08:43 AM / 04:36]
Dontrell Washington Yes.

[08:43 AM / 04:37]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Can you describe that interaction?

[08:43 AM / 04:39]
Dontrell Washington Are you talking about before they got into Just overall.

[08:44 AM / 04:42)
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Overall.

[08:44 AM / 04:43)
Dontrell Washington Okay. Um, so again, the officer arrived to the scene, me and Mr. Hollman, our
first interaction was, uh, you know, explaining to the officer what happened

[08:44 AM / 04:53]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS mm-hmm. <affirmative>,

[08:44 AM / 04:53]
Dontrell Washington um, he was, he was even explaining it to the officer while the officer was still in
the car. Um, so the officer got out of the car, you know, let us know

[D8:44 AM / 05:02]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS mm-hmm. <affirmative>,

[08:44 AM / 05:02]



234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293

Dontrell Washington | know it happened. Um, he's still like, you know, we kind of still explained it to
him

[08:44 AM / 05:07]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS mm-hmm. <affirmative>

[08:44 AM / 05:08]

Dontrell Washington because he's like observing the car. So we're still kind of seeing what
happened. And, um, he asked Mr. Hollman to just drive, like, our cars were kind of like interlocked,
but the way we hit it seemed like the cars were kind of like la latched together.

[08:44 AM [ 05:22)
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Right.

[08:44 AM / 05:23]
Dontrell Washington So he asked, uh, Mr. Hollman to drive 10 or 15 feet, like from the,

[08:44 AM / 05:28]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS from your car?

[08:44 AM / 05:29]

Dontrell Washington And maybe, | guess it was because it was easier to tow. | have no idea why he
wanted them to drive. Now that | think about it, maybe it would've been easier to tow the cars that
way. But, um, | just saw him ask him to drive forward

{08:45 AM / 05:42)
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS mm-hmm. <affirmative>

[08:45 AM / 05:43]

Dontrell Washington and then, you know, once he, uh, the officer was handing us the police report.
So from that point about, | guess an, an additional 20 minutes, 'cause he had to write the police
report. So he was in his vehicle writing the police report

[08:45 AM / 05:55]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS mm-hmm. <affirmative>,

[08:45 AM / 05:55]
Dontrell Washington um, | saw them, you know, getting into like, you want me to explain just what
happened?

[08:45 AM / 06:03]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Yes.

[08:45 AM / 06:03]
Dontrell Washington Overall,

[08:45 AM / 06;04]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS yes sir.

[08:45 AM f 06:04]
Dontrell Washington Um, so I'm,

[08:45 AM / 06:05}
Attorney LaShonda Council Rogers wait, hold on let me let you ask the question.

[08:45 AM / 06:07]
Dontrell Washington Okay.

[08:45 AM / 06:07)
Attorney LaShenda Council Rogers What question that you want to ask him
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[08:45 AM / 06:09)
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS$ After that, uh, interaction when the officer went to Mr. Hollman, what did
you see happen?

[08:45 AM / 06:18]

Dontrell Washington So, um, | was still looking down 'cause this is like, you know, he hand, he
handed me the report, a paper that had a case number where my car's getting towed. So I'm looking
down to see where, where my car's getting towed. I'm like looking at the address, like trying to Google
the address to see okay, how, where's my car gonna be. And then all of a sudden | heard like, you
know, the officer yelling and them essentially getting into like some sort of physical struggle.

[08:46 AM / 06:45)
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Mm-hmm. <affirmative>.

{08:46 AM / 06:46)
Dontrell Washington Um, and I'm sorry, what was your question?

[08:46 AM / 06:49]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS What did you see, uh, after your interaction when the officer went to Mr.
Holtman and started conversing with him?

[08:46 AM f 06:55]

Dontrell Washington Yeah, so | didn't see the, like when he walked up to him, | wasn't looking
'cause | was like looking at my paper again 'cause | was just making sure, okay, | know where my
car's getting towed.

[08:46 AM / 07.04]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Right.

[08:46 AM / 07:05]

Dontrell Washington Um, they caught my attention because they, the officer was like, you know,
yelling or whatever saying, Hey, you know, | don't remember exactly what he was saying, but |, | just
know he was yelling. So 1 don't know if he was saying stop resisting or comply. | don't know the exact
verbiage.

[08:46 AM / 07:23]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Yeah.

[08:46 AM / 07:24]
Dontrell Washington But, um, it caught my attention enough for me to look up.

[08:46 AM / 07:26]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Right.

[08:46 AM / 07:27]
Dontrell Washington And then, because they were like feet away from me

[08:46 AM / 07:30]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS mm-hmm. <affirmative>

[08:46 AM / 07:30]
Dontrell Washington because his car, he had drove his car just kind of like little bit of, you know,
about 10 feet away.

[08:46 AM / 07:34]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Right.

{08:46 AM / 07:35]
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Dontrell Washington Um, so | looked up and they were basically like, like his, he was just kind of
trying to move his arms from there. It looked like he was like in a arresting position.

[08:47 AM / 07:47]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Right.

[08:47 AM [ 07:48]
Dontrell Washington And there was some sort of like, struggle.

[08:47 AM / 07:50]
Investigator A. Nixon_QOPS So, so Mr. Hollman's back was to the officer's Front?

[08:47 AM / 07:53]
Dontrell Washington Yes, So when | looked up his office, his back was like, like he was basically
like, they were getting into some sort of struggle

[08:47 AM / 08:02]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS mm-hmm. <affirmative>,

[08:47 AM / 08:02]
Dontrell Washington | mean, it was kind of happening fast. So | don't know if how long his back was
turned or whatnot.

[08:47 AM / 08:07]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Yes sir.

[08:47 AM / 08:08]
Dontrell Washington Um, | just kind of remember seeing when | lock up, he was trying to do like leg
sweep to get him to comply.

[08:47 AM / 08:186]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Mm-hmm. <affirmative>.

[08:47 AM / 08:17]
Dontrell Washington Um, do you like what

[08:47 AM / 08:20]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Yeah, keep, keep,

[08:47 AM / 08:22)]
Attorney LaShonda Council Rogers 'l let you ask the question,

[08:47 AM / 08:23)
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS$S <laugh>. Okay. And after that, what did you see?

[08:47 AM / 08:26]
Dontrell Washington Um, so eventually they felt like in front of his car.

[08:47 AM / 08:30]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Mm-hmm. <affirmative>.

[08:47 AM / 08:31]
Dontrell Washington So it was kind of like out outta my,

[08:47 AM / 08:33]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS when you say His car? it Was?

[08:47 AM / 08:34)
Dontrell Washington Mr. Hollman's car.
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[08:47 AM / 08:35]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Right.

[08:47 AM / 08:35]
Dontrell Washington Sorry.

{08:47 AM / 08:36]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Okay.

[08:47 AM / 08:36]
Dontrell Washington Um, so he had a, like a white truck

[08:47 AM / 08:39]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS mm-hmm. <affirmative>.

[08:47 AM / 08:39]
Dontrell Washington So it was like, from that point, it was basically kind of like outta my vision.

[08:48 AM / 08:43]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Mm-hmm. <affirmative>

[08:48 AM / 08:44]
Dontrell Washington what exactly what was happening on the ground.

[08:48 AM / 08:46)
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Okay. Did you see when Mr. Holliman stopped yelling and screaming or
being,vocal?

[08:48 AM / 09:02]
Attorney LaShonda Council Rogers You know, which question is that?

[08:48 AM / 09:03]
Lieutenant Justina Collins_OPS No. Follow follow the question?

[08:48 AM / 09:04]
Attorney LaShonda Council Rogers Yeah. Which question is that? <laugh>,

[08:48 AM / 09:05]
Lieutenant Justina Collins_OPS Follow the question.

[08:48 AM/09:12]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Did you overhear anything that was said by the officer?

[08:48 AM / 09:18]
Dontrell Washington You're talking about while they're,

[08:48 AM / 09:20]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS You might've explained that on already when you said that he was
trying, you know, yelling. That's what caught your attention.

[08:48 AM / 09:26)

Dontrell Washington Yeah, it caught my attention. Um, | don't remember exactly what was being
said. Um, it was just like loud in terms of, oh, okay, well what's going on here? Um, so it was just loud
enough for me to like, to draw my attention to like, whoa, what is happening here? Because | mean,
before that point in time, the main thing is, you know, with a officer, especially with a accident scene,
it's just kind of like regular interaction

[08:49 AM / 09:52]
investigator A. Nixon_OPS mm-hmm. <affirmative>
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[08:49 AM / 09:52}
Dontrell Washington in terms of they're not coming like, like ready or something like that.

[08:49 AM / 09:57]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Mm-hmm. <affirmative>.

[08:49 AM / 09:57)
Dontrell Washington So it caught my attention 'cause it's like, oh, whoa, this is like, seems like
something is happening.

[08:49 AM / 10:03]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Right.

{08:49 AM / 10:03]
Dontrell Washington Because the officer is like adamantly trying to, you know

[08:49 AM / 10:05]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS mm-hmm. <affirmative>, uh, or they're into it.

[08:49 AM / 10:09]
Dontrell Washington Um, what was the question?

[08:49 AM / 10:13]
Lieutenant Justina Collins_OPS <laugh>?

(08:49 AM / 10:13]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Uh, did you overhear anything that was said by the o I'm sorry? Did you
overhear anything that was said by the officer?

[08:49 AM / 10:20]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS | think he answered that.

[08:49 AM / 10:21]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Yeah, he did.

[08:49 AM / 10:21]
Lieutenant Justina Collins_OPS Yeah. That's okay. Next one.

[08:49 AM / 10:23]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Did you overhear anything said by Mr. Hollman, the other involved
party?

[08:49 AM / 10:30]
Dontrell Washington Um, when he was on the ground, | did hear like him just saying he couldn't
breathe and like, you know, so | heard him seem like he was like begging for like help

[08:50 AM / 10:43]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS mm-hmm. <affirmative>,

[08:50 AM / 10:43]
Dontrell Washington um, essentially like that's, that's essentially what he was doing. Like kind of
begging for help. Um, yeah, | mean that's, that's the best way | can summarize it.

[08:50 AM / 10:54]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Yes Sir. Did you video record any of the altercation between the off
police officer and the other invoived party?

[08:50 AM / 11:02]
Attorney LaShonda Council Rogers Yes. Oh
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[(08:50 AM / 11:03]
Dontrell Washington Yeah.

[08:50 AM / 11:04]
Lieutenant Justina Collins_OPS And you provided that to our office?

[08:50 AM / 11:08]
Attorney LaShonda Council Rogers He provided it to us.

[08:50 AM / 11:08]
Lieutenant Justina Collins_OPS Right. | just wanted, | just wanna make sure that, ‘cause we, we
just wanna verify that that's how we got the video.

[08:50 AM / 11:14]
Attorney LaShonda Council Rogers Okay.

[08:50 AM / 11:15]
Lieutenant Justina Collins_OPS Yes, yes.

[08:50 AM / 11:15]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Okay.

[08:50 AM / 11:16])
Lieutenant Justina Collins_OPS Okay.

[08:50 AM / 11:19]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS How did you come in contact with the female passenger rideshare? Oh,
how did you come in contact with the previous passenger?

[08:50 AM / 11:26)

Dontrell Washington Oh, it was just the passenger. | met her probably about five minutes before,
like, as soon as | picked her up, the accident happened, | would say within less than five minutes. So |
had never met her before, period.

[08:50 AM / 11:35]
Investigator A. Nixon_OP$S Okay. Um, do you have any contact information for that passenger?

[08:51 AM / 11:43]
Dontrell Washington Yes.

[08:51 AM / 11:45]
Lieutenant Justina Collins_OPS Can you provide that to us?

[08:51 AM / 11:49]
Attorney LaShonda Council Rogers Well, | don't know if you, it would be up to Uber because she
was an Uber passenger, so.

[08:51 AM / 11:54]
Lieutenant Justina Collins_OPS Right. She's not. Or if there's, if there's a way that we need or a
direction that you need to point us to ask if we can get her information. 'cause we don't have like

[08:51 AM / 12:03]
Attorney LaShonda Council Rogers right

[08:51 AM / 12:03]
Lieutenant Justina Collins_OPS a contact number for her.

[08:51 AM / 12:04)
Attorney LaShonda Counci! Rogers Okay.
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[08:51 AM / 12:04]

Lieutenant Justina Collins_OPS So that's all we're like, if you can, then you can, if you can and we

need to ask Uber, then we will ask Uber if we can get her information. But that's about, | mean,

[08:51 AM / 12:14]
Attorney LaShonda Council Rogers Well | know he can't.

[08:51 AM [ 12:15]
Lieutenant Justina Collins_OPS Okay.

[08:51 AM / 12:15]
Attorney LaShonda Council Rogers Give it because |, |, | mean just ‘cause | know it would be
against Uber policy to give a passenger's information out.

[08:51 AM / 12:21]
Lieutenant Justina Collins_OPS Okay. That's fine.

[08:51 AM / 12:22]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Totally understand.

[08:51 AM / 12:23]

Lieutenant Justina Collins_OPS Um, so we'll reach out to, | guess Uber is there, uh, way or a
specific um Okay. Just so we can attempt to reach out to her. She may not want to talk to us and
that's fine. We just need to give her opportunity

[08:52 AM / 12:41]
Attorney LaShonda Council Rogers mm-hmm. <affirmative>.

[08:52 AM / 12:42]
Lieutenant Justina Collins_OPS So, um, | think that's it for our questions.

[08:52 AM / 12:46]
Attorney LaShonda Council Rogers Yeah, that's it.

{08:52 AM / 12:47]
Lieutenant Justina Collins_OPS Alright.

[08:52 AM / 12:47]
Attorney LaShonda Council Rogers Short and sweet.

[08:52 AM / 12:48]
Investigator A. Nixon_OPS Okay.

[08:52 AM / 12:48]
Lieutenant Justina Collins_OPS Yeah.

[08:52 AM / 12:49]

Investigator A. Nixon_OPS And with that being said, that'll conclude this interview. Today's date is

August 31st, 2023. And the time is 3:46 PM.
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